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	RFP NUMBER AND TITLE:
	RFP# 202408156 Energy Efficiency Planning for Rural Communities

	RFP ISSUED BY:
	Governor’s Office of Policy Innovation and the Future

	SUBMITTED QUESTIONS DUE DATE:
	October 14, 2024

	QUESTION & ANSWER SUMMARY ISSUED:
	October 18, 2024

	PROPOSAL DUE DATE:
	November 1, 2024, no later than 11:59 p.m. local time

	PROPOSALS DUE TO:
	Proposals@maine.gov



Provided below are submitted written questions received and the Department’s answer.


	1
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, page 5
	Can the GOPIF confirm what the total budget is for the scope of services requested for this Energy Efficiency Planning program?

Is there a maximum budget that Maine is expecting? 

	
	Answer

	
	The Department is seeking cost-effective proposals that meet the requirements of the Scope of Services (Part II of the RFP).



	2
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, page 6 and 8
	Should the Initial Period of Performance be assumed to include the scope of work outlined in the RFP (20 communities, 2-6 buildings each)? 

Can GOPIF confirm what scope of work would be provided in the Renewal Period #1?

What is the anticipated timeline for completion of each requested task outlined in Part II Scope of Services?

Task D requests that the Energy Efficiency and Conservation Guidebook be revised based on lessons learned during Task A-C. When within the contract term is requested for the consultant to provide the guidebook deliverables to GOPIF?

	
	Answer

	
	The Scope of Services as outlined in Part II of the RFP is expected to be completed within the Initial Period of Performance. Bidders may suggest a project timeline that completes each task within the Initial Period of Performance.



	3
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part I, page 8
	Does the GOPIF have specific communities selected and can building lists be provided with building type and square footage?

	
	Answer

	
	The Department is seeking applications from communities in parallel with this RFP and will provide this information to the consultant after selecting the consultant.



	4
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, page 8
	Beginning on page 8, you provide the guidance that bidders should describe their experience and approach for services A-D. Where would you like this included in the proposal format that begins on page 14?

	
	Answer

	
	Bidders should discuss their experience in the QUALIFICATIONS and EXPERIENCE FORM (Appendix C) that begins on page 23 of the RFP. 

Bidders should include a narrative of the Scope of Services referenced in Part II of the RFP as part of their Proposed Services (File #3). The RFP does not provide a template form for File #3. Instead, Bidders are invited to submit this information in a format that best communicates their approach. 

For more information on Proposal Submission Requirements, see Part IV of the RFP.



	[bookmark: _Hlk48905851]5
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, page 8
	Does the RFP require all energy audits for the selected public buildings to be conducted on-site, or is there flexibility to perform remotely using virtual energy efficiency audit software?

	
	Answer

	
	Prospective bidders should be capable of working with up to 20 communities statewide to provide the Scope of Services outlined in the response to the RFP. The proposed energy audits should be sufficient to identify the needs of the building in terms of HVAC, building envelope, lighting, water heating, and other energy needs specific to the site. A strong proposal will describe an approach to providing energy audits that achieves the goals of the RFP. 



	6
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, page 8
	What level of detail is expected for the energy audit requirements? (e.g. ASHRAE LEVEL 1, 2, or 3)

	
	Answer

	
	The RFP does not specific an expected ASHRAE level. The proposed energy audits should be sufficient to identify the needs of the buildings in terms of HVAC, building envelope, lighting, water heating, and other energy needs specific to the site. A strong proposal will describe an approach to providing energy audits  that achieves the goals of the RFP. 



	7
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, page 8
	Task A requests that “Blower door Tests” be conducted, as well as “Thermal camera for missing insulation and potential sources of air leakage”.  Is the intent to get quantitative air leakage results for each building or to use blower doors to assist with thermography?  To save time, energy and cost, would the GOPIF consider the use of existing mechanical systems placed in positive and then negative pressure in lieu of blower door testing to provide qualitative testing?

	
	Answer

	
	Energy audits may include blower door tests or thermal camera for missing insulations and potential sources of air leakage, but this is not a requirement if the bidder can obtain comparable information in a more cost-effective way. A strong proposal will describe an approach to providing energy audits that achieves the goals of the RFP. 



	8
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, page 8
	Please confirm if Task B EnergyStar Portfolio Manager trainings can be provided with remote web conference trainings?

Who is the intended audience for the ENERGY STAR Portfolio Manager training? Is it one person for the entire community (e.g. a facility manager) or 1 person per building? Are the trainings expected to be in-person or virtual?

	
	Answer

	
	Prospective bidders should be capable of working with up to 20 communities statewide to provide the Scope of Services outlined in the RFP. A strong proposal will describe an approach to providing EnergyStar Portfolio Manager trainings which ensures expectations and/or desired outcomes as a result of these services will be achieved.
EnergyStar Portfolio Manager trainings will support relevant municipal staff within the communities.



	9
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part II, page 9
	Is Maine interested in electrification being a core component of the Energy Conservation Implementation plans for communities?

	
	Answer

	
	The Energy Conservation Implementation Plans will serve as a roadmap for communities to prioritize, fund, and implement energy efficiency and conservation projects. The Energy Conservation Implementation Plans may additionally include clean energy and electrification projects such as how and where to install on-site solar, energy storage, electric vehicle charging infrastructure, and other relevant energy projects.



	10
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Part IV, page 14
	When you refer to Sections I-IV, do you want these to be separate files or separate sections within one file?

	
	Answer

	
	As stated in Part III of the RFP, Bidder’s proposal submissions are to be broken down into multiple files, with each file named as it is titled in bold below, and include:

· File 1 [Bidder’s Name] – Preliminary Information: 
PDF format preferred
Appendix A (Proposal Cover Page)
Appendix B (Responsible Bidder Certification)
All required eligibility documentation stated in PART IV, Section I.

· File 2 [Bidder’s Name] – Organization Qualifications and Experience:
PDF format preferred
Appendix C (Organization Qualifications and Experience Form) and all required information and attachments stated in PART IV, Section II.

· File 3 [Bidder’s Name] – Proposed Services: 
PDF format preferred
All required information and attachments stated in PART IV, Section III.

· File 4 [Bidder’s Name] – Cost Proposal:
PDF format preferred
Appendix D (Cost Proposal Form) and all required information and attachments stated in PART IV, Section IV.



	11
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Section IV, page 16
	Would providing a cost range for typical ASHRAE Level II Audits on municipal buildings be acceptable?

	
	Answer

	
	The Bidder should provide a proposed budget that covers the costs necessary for the Bidder to meet the RFP requirements. For Task A, the budget may be developed on a per community or per building basis. For more information on proposed energy audits, see Question 5. 




	12
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix C, page 23
	For project examples in Appendix C, are we required to fill out our qualifications and project information within the form, or may we put the same questions/project examples on our branded template?

	
	Answer

	
	Include any forms provided in the submission package or reproduce those forms as closely as possible.  



	13
	RFP Section & Page Number
	Question

	
	Appendix D, page 24
	Can GOPIF confirm the number of communities and number of buildings that should be assumed for program pricing? Or how respondents should include assumptions for pricing? The scope of services states “up to twenty (20) Maine communities” and “2-6 buildings per community”. The number of communities, number of buildings and total gross building area will impact the cost of the program.

	
	Answer

	
	The Department is seeking applications from communities in parallel with this RFP and will provide this information to the consultant after selecting the consultant. For Tasks A, B, and C, the budget may be developed on a per community or per building basis.
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